



BY-LAWS OF THE AMERICAN LEGION

DEPARTMENT OF MINNESOTA

FIRST DISTRICT

- 1) The District Commander shall be the Executive head of the First District with full power to enforce the provisions of the Constitution and By-Laws and the will of the District Convention. He / She shall preside over all meetings of the District in Convention and meetings of the Executive Committee and perform such other duties as custom and parliamentary uses require. He / She shall call all necessary committees, except such as are otherwise provided for by the District Constitution. The Constitution of The American Legion, Department of Minnesota states that the District Commander and the Immediate Past District Commander shall serve as members of the Department Executive Committee. In absence that the Immediate Past Commander is not able to serve in said position, The American Legion member seated in that position shall be a Past First District Commander. He shall be responsible for the content of the newsletter, (proof read) and the timely publication of the newsletter. He shall issue the convention call at least 30 days prior to the convention.
- 2) The Immediate Past Commander shall serve on the District and Department Executive Boards.
- 3) The District Vice-Commanders shall act as representatives of the District Commander on all matters referred to them by him / her and shall at his / her request preside over conventions or meetings of the Executive Committee and perform such other duties as are usually incident to the office.
- 4) The District Adjutant shall keep a record of all activities of the District Commander on all matters of the Executive Committee. He / She shall at regular convention and meetings of the Executive Committee, read the minutes of the preceding meeting and make such corrections as may be dispensed with. He / She shall cause written or e-mail notice to be given of all meetings of the Executive no less than 10 days prior. He / She shall keep a record of the membership of the local posts. He / She is charged with administration of the District Headquarters subject to the directions of the Commander and Executive Committee and shall perform such other duties as the Executive Committee may direct.
- 5) The Finance Officer shall have custody of all the funds of the District and shall deposit the same in its name in such bank or banks as the Executive Committee shall designate. He / She shall disburse the funds under the direction of the Commander and the Executive Committee. He / She shall give bond to the District in such form as the Executive Committee shall direct. He shall insure that the Incoming Commander of the District knows the financial policy.

- 6) The District Chaplain shall be charged with the spiritual welfare of the members of the First District and will offer divine but non-sectarian services at any First District function where such service is required. He /She will adhere to such ceremonial rituals as are recommended by the National or Department Headquarters from time to time. He / She will have charge of the annual memorial service of the District held during the District Convention. He/ She shall attend District meetings, rallies and Executive Board meetings.
- 7) The District Historian shall be charged with the individual records and incidents of the District and District members and shall perform such other duties as may from time to time be assigned to by the District Commander or the Executive Committee.
- 8) The District Sergeant-at-Arms shall preserve order at all meetings and shall perform such other duties as may be from time to time assigned to him / her by the District Commander.
- 9) The District Judge Advocate shall perform such duties as may be required of him / her by the District Commander or the Executive Committee.
- 10) The Commander, with the consent of the Executive Committee, shall appoint as practicable after assuming their offices, the following standing committees; Americanism, Adult Sports, Blood Program, Children & Youth, Membership, Oratorical, Publicity, School Patrol, Sons of The American Legion Advisor, Uniform, Post Development, Steering, Time and Place (past three commanders), resolutions, National Security/Foreign Relations, Rehab, Legislative and may appoint other committees as they deem necessary.
- 11) Every elected and appointed District Officer shall provide an honorable discharge or proof of separation, in the form of separation papers from the military forces of the United States, stating they were on duty during the eligibility dates of the American Legion which include; An individual is eligible for membership in The American Legion only if the individual – (1)(A) has served in the Armed Forces of the United States at any time during -the period of April 6, 1917, through November 11, 1918; or any time after December 7, 1941; or a government associated with the United States Government during a period of time referred to in subsection (A) of this section and was a citizen of the United States when the individual entered that service; and (2) was honorably discharged or separated from that service or continues to serve honorably during or after that period of time; provided, however, that such service shall have been terminated by honorable discharge or honorable separation, or continued honorably during or after any of said periods; provided, further, that no person shall be entitled to membership who, being in such service during any of said periods, refused on conscientious, political or other grounds to subject themselves to military discipline or unqualified service.

AMENDMENTS

- 1) Amendments to these By-Laws may be made at any convention by the vote of the majority of the delegates present, providing there is a quorum.

(NOTE) This Constitution and By-Laws are not official until they are adopted at a convention of the First District, and unless a certificate signed by the Commander and Adjutant, certifying that said Constitution and By-Laws have been duly adopted, is attached.

REGULATIONS GUIDE LINE FOR FIRST DISTRICT FUNCTIONS

COMMANDERS AND ADJUTANTS SCHOOL

Bids to be asked for and site named by the District Commander. District to pay all attending Commanders and Adjutants meals plus the officers putting on the school. Other Legion and Auxiliary members to purchase their own meal. Registration not to exceed \$5.00 if charged. Meal price not to exceed \$8.00.

FALL RALLY

Shall be at the home of the First District Commander. Noon luncheon price not to exceed \$8.00. Registration; Legion \$5.00, Auxiliary \$5.00, SAL \$5.00, ALR \$5.00.

MID-WINTER

Shall be at the home of the District President. Time and Place to be known at Fall Rally. Registration; Legion \$5.00, Auxiliary \$5.00, SAL \$5.00, ALR \$5.00. Noon luncheon price not to exceed \$8.00.

DISTRICT PICNIC

The Commanders membership team shall choose the site and notify all members by the District Newsletter. The cost of the picnic shall according to the District Budget.

CONVENTION RULES

Rules committee submits the following proposed rules for the convention.

- 1) With the following modification, Robert's Rules of Order, revised, be adopted for this convention.
- 2)
 - a) That the speech of any Delegate, recognized by the Commander, shall be limited to three (3) minutes and no more.
 - b) Where a motion is made to table a resolution, the sponsor shall be entitled to speak to the Convention for three (3) minutes. Rebuttal be granted to the maker of the resolution to table before the motion input.
- 3) That the floor be permitted but once to individual on any subject, except with the unanimous consent of the Convention.
- 4) That on Roll Call, the Chairman or Acting Chairman of each Delegation on the floor shall announce the vote of his / her Delegation.
- 5) That no delegate be permitted on the Convention Floor unless he / she is certified by his / her Post as a Delegate or Alternate and that every Delegate or Alternate, to be duly credited, must be registered and show a current membership card.
- 6) No person or Delegate shall act by proxy for any Post. No Post shall vote unless at least one registered and Accredited Delegate or Alternate be present on the Convention Floor.
- 7) Voting shall be by acclamation, except when a Roll Call is determined by the Chairman or Acting Chairman

- of at least three (3) Delegations and except in the election of District Officers, which shall be by roll call.
- 8) Nominating speeches for District Officers shall be limited to three (3) minutes. No more than one seconding speech shall be made for each candidate; this is not to exceed two (2) minutes.
 - 9) In the event more than two (2) candidates are nominated for any office, the balloting shall continue until on one candidate shall have received the majority of votes cast.
 - 10) No personalities or partisan politics shall be discussed or indulged in on the convention floor, and the First District Commander shall prohibit such indulgences.

I MOVE THE RULES HERE STATED BE ADOPTED FOR THIS CONVENTION

FIRST DISTRICT CONVENTION GUIDELINES

The District Convention of the American Legion is a District Activity. The Convention City is the host to The American Legion and through the representative local organization of The American Legion, there shall be constituted a local Convention Committee which should represent all elements of the community. The membership of this committee shall cooperate with the organization of businesses, which represents the city in matters pertaining to conventions. The organization of the local Convention Committee as outlined herein are based on what experience has shown are minimum needs. The requirements and suggestions are made as a general guide and are not with a view to governing every detail, since local conditions may necessitate slight changes, but in so far as minimum requirements are concerned, this outline should be followed without exception.

The District Commander shall have the authority to issue such interpretations and amplifications as may be necessary to carry out the spirit and purpose of these regulations. The District Adjutant shall act as liaison Officer of the District with the Convention Committee.

The District Commander and the officials of the local committee shall take such steps as may necessary to insure proper conduct on the part of members of the American Legion attending the District Convention and shall assist the local authorities in maintaining law and order in every respect.

LIABILITY OF DISTRICT CANDIDATES OPEN HOUSE

For insurance purposes, it is recommended that all open houses be held in the host city post. Anyone that desires or wishes to may hold an open house in their motel / hotel room in the motel / hotel allows, at their, The person holding the open house, own responsibility.

**SECTION A
EXPENSES**

No expenses of any kind whatsoever will be honored by the First District Committee unless these expenses are incurred by a properly authorized person for /convention activities within the scope of his / her authority. No committees appointed by the Chairman has any authority whatsoever unless first authorized in writing to bind the District on any contracts or obligations of any kind. Convention minutes shall be provided for the Commander, Adjutant, Historian and host Post

SECTION B
ORGANIZATION AND REQUIREMENTS

Convention Management The Convention City through the general chairman appointed by it shall have entire charge of all elements in the Convention City. The Convention Chairman shall appoint an Assistant Chairman and Assistant Chairwomen to aid him / her in the staging of the Convention, and in addition thereto, shall set up the following committees, among others;

1. Concessions
2. Convention Hall and Meeting places
3. Decorations
4. Distinguished Guests
5. Entertainment
6. Housing, Registration, Information and Badges

Sub Committees

- a) General Housing
 - b) Musical Housing
 - c) Registration
 - d) Information
 - e) Badges
 - f) Posters and signs
7. Insurance and Bonds
 8. Music

Sub Committees

- a) Memorial and Funeral
 - b) Music Contests
9. Parade
 10. Programs
 11. Provost Service – Police Service
 12. Publicity
 13. Transportation
 14. American Legion Auxiliary

Sub Committees

- a) Gold Star Mothers
 - b) Pages
 - c) Such other Committees as the Auxiliary shall decide upon
15. American Legion Sons of the American Legion

Sub Committees as decided

16. American Legion Riders

Sub Committees as decided

The District Commander shall have charge of the program and order of all business for the Convention, and may extend the privilege of addressing the sessions of the Convention to such persons he / she desires.

Hotels and Housing

The Host Post shall block rooms at a designated hotel and Delegates should make their own reservations directly with the hotel.

The Host Post shall provide one night housing for the District Commander and the District President if needed. It is also required that the Host City must have adequate housing facilities of 20 rooms within 20 miles and have transportation available.

Halls and Seating

Since adequate and convenient arrangement for meeting halls and committee rooms will have a definite effect on the successful conduct of the Convention business, it is very necessary that the Chairman of the Convention Hall Committee have a definite understanding with the Committee handling the decorations, music, information service, provost, ect. The following halls and rooms are the minimum necessary for the conduct of Convention business:

1. LEGION CONVENTION HALL AND COMMITTEE ROOMS

At least 75 seats shall be available for delegates and alternates directly in front of the stage, and extending across the hall, which must be kept reserved for delegates and alternates only, at all sessions Post delegations will be seated under the same plans as the parade order established, except that Host Post retain position as indicated by membership. The remaining seats on the floor and in the galleries are for general attendance, including Legionnaires, members of the Auxiliary, The Sons of The American Legion, The American Legion Riders and their friends.

Accommodations for the representatives of the Press should be provided immediately in front of the stage. The District SGT at Arms will keep order in the Auditorium at all times, and will be furnished with as many Assistant SGT at Arms as may be necessary.

2. AUXILIARY CONVENTION HALL AND COMMITTEE ROOMS

At least 75 seats shall be available for delegates and alternates, details of which will be supplied by the District Auxiliary Secretary at least ten (10) day prior to the Convention.

3. SONS OF THE AMERICAN LEGION CONVENTION HALL AND COMMITTEE ROOMS

At least 25 seats shall be available for delegates and alternates, details of which will be supplied by the District SAL Adjutant at least ten (10) days prior to the Convention.

4. THE AMERICAN LEGION RIDERS CONVENTION HALL AND COMMITTEE ROOMS

At least 25 seats shall be available for delegates and alternates, details of which will be supplies by the District ALR Adjutant at least ten (10) day prior to the Convention.

SECTION C

Memorial Service

When possible, it may be advisable to hold the Convention Memorial Service out of doors, but in case of inclement weather, this service must be held indoors in the largest hall available. Since it is desired to attract to the Service a large number of the general public, it is important that proper facilities be available for this particular occasion. 15 minutes prior to the Memorial Service. **The American Legion Bar shall be closed and remain closed during the Memorial Service.**

SECTION D

Reception and Distinguished Guests

The District Adjutant is responsible for making arraignments for Distinguished Guests.

SECTION E

Parade Outline and Regulations

The general Convention activities reach a climax in the parade, which is the most interesting and most colorful feature of the Convention. The District Commander, through his / her Liaison Officer, is directed to issue such regulations, in addition to the limitations prescribed herein, as may be necessary to assure that this parade shall always be of such nature as to be truly in keeping with the aims and dignity of the American Legion.

Holding a parade is the option of the Host Post.

The parade will be limited to members of The American Legion, The American Legion Auxiliary and Sons of the American Legion, uniformed bodies of these organizations or sponsored by them, and only floats or displays of a patriotic or civic significance shall be allowed in the parade. Decisions on questionable floats shall rest with the District Liaison Officer and the Chairman of the Parade Committee. Commercial Floats shall be judged in a separate class from Legion Floats. The Units of the parade shall proceed in the following order:

1. Police Escort
2. District Colors with Escort
3. Outgoing District Commander and District Officers (in cars, if desired)
4. Incoming District Commander and District Officers (in cars, if desired)
5. Outgoing District Auxiliary President and District Officers (in cars, if desired)
6. Incoming District Auxiliary President and District Officers (in cars, if desired)
7. Past or National Officers (in cars, if desired)
8. Past District Commanders (in cars, if desired)
9. Grand Marshall and Distinguished Guests (in cars, if desired)
10. *District Posts and Auxiliary Units by membership ranking with Colors and Escort
11. District Sons of The American Legion Commander and Squadrons with Colors and Escort
12. Military Units and Other Floats and participants.

Bands may be spaced between the units as may be available. All bands must have the American Flag as part of their marching unit to be judged.

*Post delegations shall march in the order of their membership standing as of thirty days prior to the opening of the District Convention.

The maximum length of the parade route from the initial point to the point of dismissal will not exceed two miles. The point will be designated a certain distance from the Reviewing Stand where the Bands and Drum and Bugle Corps will start to play, and they will continue to play until shortly after the reviewing stand. A point will be provided prior to this latter point where all Bands and Drum Corps will cease to play in order not to interfere with the display before the reviewing stand.

Places will be provided in the Reviewing Stand for District and Department Officers of The American Legion, American Legion Auxiliary, Sons of The American Legion and Public Officials.

The distance between units will not be less than 30 nor more than 50 paces. Each Post Delegation will march in platoons, arranged in an orderly manner.

The Host Post shall march in last position irrespective of their membership ranking.

SECTION F

Publicity and Printing

Pre-Convention publicity shall emanate from the Convention City under the direction of the Publicity Committee of the Convention Committee.

SECTION G

Registration

Registration of all, but no charge to Department Officers, National Officers or visiting District Officers. Distinguished Guest Chairman shall provide the registration table with an updated list. Registration shall be conducted at a convenient location and shall be fixed at \$10.00 for Legionnaires, \$10.00 for Auxiliary members, \$10.00 for SAL members and \$10.00 for ALR members. This shall include Convention Badge, Booklet of full admission to all entertainments and a complete packet of information of convention activities. Only one (1) registration is required.

SECTION H

Transportation

The Transportation Committee should make all possible arrangements with the various transportation mediums serving the Convention City in order to assure Convention visitors the lowest possible transportation costs. The information should be released through the committee in charge of publicity. These should be available from the day prior to the opening of the Convention and throughout the Convention period.

SECTION I

Badges and Trophies

Badges for the registration officials, and distinguished guest, and ribbon badges for Convention Committee members and Convention Executive Committee officials shall be provided at the expense of the Convention City. The design for all such badges shall be approved by the District Liaison Officer.

Trophies which are furnished by the Convention City shall be awarded through the Contest Awards Committee.

Proposed categories for judging and award at District Convention Parade:

Special Units (floats, non-marching units, ect.)

First Place

Second Place

Legion Color guards (made up of Legion Members of a Post)

First Place

Second Place

Invited Color Guards (Reserve, Guard, Active units)

First Place

Second Place

Auxiliary Marching Units

First Place

Second Place

SAL Units

- First Place
- Second Place

ALR Units

- First Place
- Second Place

High School Bands

- First Place
- Second Place
- Third Place (if more than 8 bands)

SECTION J**District Noon Luncheon**

The host post shall provide a noon lunch at the convention with a \$8.00 limit.

The Convention Host Post shall provide tickets for the following: District Commander, District President, Guest Speaker and any distinguished guests invited by the District Commander and District President. The District Commander shall act as the Master of Ceremonies.

AUXILIARY CONVENTION GUIDELINES**RULES GOVERNING DISTRICT CONVENTION:**

1. The Convention city shall pay the following: expenses for the Memorial Service if needed, housing, registration, and luncheon tickets for the District President and District Secretary. Registration for the District Executive Committee, District Parliamentarian, District Sergeant-at-Arms, District Color Bearer, District Chaplain, District Treasurer, and District Musician will be paid by the First District American Legion Auxiliary. If prepaid by this member, reimbursement will be done by voucher from the District Treasurer. Payment to be taken from the Unallocated Fund. Registration and luncheon tickets for the distinguished guests shall be designated by the American Legion.
2. Every Unit should bring their flags to the District Convention with the hostess Unit's flags leading the processional. All Unit Presidents will follow in the processional, in alphabetical order by city, behind their flags, if present, followed by the District Officers. The District Colors shall precede the District President.
3. The Joyce Erickson District Gavel is to be used by the current District President during her administrative year and convention.